






























































































BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 3
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

2021 2020 April 1, 2019
Notes Restated Restated

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 2.5, 2.9, 6 271,178 304,649         314,849 
Intangible assets 2.6, 2.9, 7 18,329 20,411 8,907
Right-of-use assets 2.7, 8 1,186 2,056                    - 
Other non-current asset 9 2,047 2,391 2,735
Non-current assets held for sale 2.8                        -                     - 5,068
Finance lease receivable 2.4, 2.7, 10 14,843           15,572           16,290 

Total non-current assets            307,583         345,079         347,849 
Current assets
Inventories 2.9, 2.10, 11 10,205 13,236 18,974
Trade and other receivables 2.11, 12 35,468           35,648           29,630 
Prepayments 2.12 2,505             4,024             5,370 
Finance lease receivable, current portion 2.4, 2.7, 10 731                717                771 
Cash and cash equivalents 2.13 5,350             5,444             7,396 
Total current assets              54,259           59,069           62,141 

TOTAL ASSETS            361,842         404,148         409,990 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables, non-current portion 2.14, 13 2,023 2,600                672 
Lease liabilities 2.7, 8 825 1,413                    - 
Borrowings 2.15, 14 56,509           74,830           71,419 

Total non-current liabilities              59,357           78,843           72,091 

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2.14, 2.17, 13 22,400           28,764           43,472 
Lease liabilities, current portion 2.7, 8 429 653                930 
Borrowings, current portion 2.15, 14 21,291           34,188           25,503 
Dividends payable 2.26 18,867           23,486           12,645 
Other non- financial liabilities 2.18, 2.19, 15 4,858 10,028           16,294 

Total current liabilities              67,845           97,119           98,844 

TOTAL LIABILITIES            127,202         175,962         170,935 

EQUITY
Ordinary shares 2.22, 16 49,552           49,552           49,552 
Preference shares 2.22, 17 48,500           48,500           48,500 
Share premium 18 15,274           15,274           15,274 
Capital reserve - non-distributable 19              36,637           36,637           36,637 
Retained earnings              84,677           78,223           89,092 

TOTAL EQUITY            234,640         228,186         239,055 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY            361,842         404,148         409,990 

Restated (Note 27)

_____________________
     Chairman

_____________________
    Director

The notes on pages 7 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 3 to 6 were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on August 9, 2021 and are signed on 
its behalf by:

BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 4
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

2021 2020
Notes Restated

Revenue 2.23, 20 134,459 151,954                

Other operating income 20 6,826 18,116                  

Gross Income 141,285 170,070

Operating costs 2.24, 21 (119,912)           (151,664)              

Impairment of non-current assets held for sale                         - (5,068)                  

Operating profit                21,373                   13,338 

Finance income 2.25 766                   404                       

Finance costs 2.24 (6,243)               (3,258)                  

Net finance cost                (5,477)                    (2,854)

Profit before tax                15,896                   10,484 

Business tax 22 (7,234)               (9,255)                  

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR                  8,662                     1,229 

Other comprehensive income                       -                             -   

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME                  8,662                     1,229 

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Company 8,662 1,229

23 0.14 (0.01)

Restated (Note 27)

The notes on pages 7 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the 
Company:

Basic and diluted earnings per share
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BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 5
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

Restated (Note 27)

The notes on pages 7 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Ordinary 
Shares

Preference 
Shares

Share 
Premium

Capital Reserve, 
Non-Distributable

Retained 
Earnings Total 

Balance at March 31, 2019 as previously reported                49,552         48,500          15,274                    36,637     92,113   242,076 
Impact of correction of errors (Note 27)                -                  -                   -                             -     (3,021)     (3,021)
Balance as restated at March 31, 2019       49,552         48,500          15,274                    36,637     89,092   239,055 
Comprehensive income

Profit for the year                -                  -                   -                             - 1,229     1,229     
Other comprehensive income                -                  -                   -                             -              - -         

Total comprehensive income                -                  -                   -                             -       1,229       1,229 

Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends declared to ordinary shareholders (Note 24)                -                  -                   -                             -    (10,158) (10,158)  
Dividends declared to preference shareholders (Note 24)                -                  -                   -                             -     (1,940) (1,940)    

Total transactions with owners of the Company                -                  -                   -                             -    (12,098)   (12,098)

Balance as restated at March 31, 2020                                     49,552         48,500          15,274                    36,637     78,223   228,186 
Comprehensive income

Profit for the year                -                  -                   -                             -       8,662 8,662     
Other comprehensive income                -                  -                   -                             -              - -         

Total comprehensive income -                  -                    -                     -                                       8,662       8,662 

Transactions with owners of the Company
Dividends declared to ordinary shareholders (Note 24)                -                  -                   -                             -        (268) (268)       
Dividends declared to preference shareholders (Note 24)                -                  -                   -                             -     (1,940) (1,940)    

Total transactions with owners of the Company -                  -                    -                     -                                     (2,208)     (2,208)

At March 31, 2021                                           49,552         48,500          15,274                    36,637     84,677   234,640 

BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 6
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

Notes 2021 2020
Restated

Cash flow from operating activities:
  Profit for the year 8,662 1,229                    
  Adjustments for non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortization 6, 7, 8, 9 42,636 37,338                  
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (199)                  (242)                     
Obsolescence expense 11 278                   (59)                       
Re-measurement of expected credit loss 12 4,597                9,315                    
Impairment of non-current assets held for sale -                    5,068                    
Business tax 7,232                9,255                    

Operating profit before working capital changes 63,206              61,904                  

  Changes in:
Trade and other receivables (4,417)               (15,332)                
Prepayments 1,519 1,346                    
Inventories 2,753                5,797                    
Trade and other payables (6,941)               (12,780)                
Other non-financial liabilities (5,195)               (6,961)                  

Cash provided by operating activities 50,925              33,974                  
Business tax paid (7,207)               (9,490)                  

Net cash from operating activities 43,718              24,484                  

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of assets 6, 7 (6,184)               (37,526)                
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 328 252                       
Proceeds from finance lease 715 772                       

Net cash used in investing activities (5,141)               (36,502)                

Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders (6,827)               (1,257)                  
Proceeds from borrowings 3,471 38,732
Repayment of borrowings (34,689)             (26,636)                
Principal elements of lease payments (626)                  (773)                     

Net cash used in financing activities (38,671)             10,066                  

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (94)                    (1,952)                  

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 5,444                7,396                    

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 5,350                5,444                    

Restated (Note 27)

The notes on pages 7 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 5
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(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

Restated (Note 27)

The notes on pages 7 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 8
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 

Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)
The amendments clarify that while businesses usually have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of activities and
assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes
and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine whether a
substantive process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar assets.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16)
The amendment extends, by one year, the May 2020 amendment above that provides lessees with an exemption from assessing
whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16)
The amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued):

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
The amendments include consequential amendments to affected Standards so that they refer to the new Framework. Not all
amendments, however, update those pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the Framework so that they
refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some pronouncements are only updated to indicate which version of the Framework
they are referencing to (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASB in 2001, the IASB Framework of 2010, or the new revised
Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions in the Standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the
revised Conceptual Framework.

The Standards which are amended are IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19,
IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)
The amendments introduce a practical expedient for modifications required by the reform, clarify that hedge accounting is not
discontinued solely because of the IBOR reform, and introduce disclosures that allow users to understand the nature and extent of
risks arising from the IBOR reform to which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages those risks as well as the entity’s
progress in transitioning from IBORs to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing this transition.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

(iv) New and amended standards in issue but not yet effective:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)
The amendments clarify that entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting requirements assuming that the interest rate
benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform.

BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 7
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with IFRS 

(ii) Historical cost convention 

Belize Telemedia Limited is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Belize. The address of its registered
office is #1 St. Thomas Street, Esquivel Telecom Centre, Belize City, Belize.

Belize Telemedia Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together, the Group) provide communication products, services and a
broad range of voice, broadband and data communication services including fixed and mobile telephone services and internet
services within Belize. 

The Group adopted the amendments below for the first time in the current reporting period.  

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value and assets held for sale measured at fair value less costs to sell.

The Group includes Belize Telemedia Limited (the parent company) which provides telecommunication services and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries who are Telemedia Free Zone Limited which provides telecommunication services in the Designated Processing
Area (DPA) at Santa Elena, Corozal; BTL Digicell Limited which operates the Mobile LTE Advanced network; Business Enterprises
Systems Limited ("BESL"), which sells telecommunication products, rents telecommunication equipment, and provides other non-
telecommunications services; International Communication Services Limited and International Communication Services (Belize
District) Limited which operate in the DPA at Mile 13 1/2 on the Northern Highway; International Communication Services (Cayo
District) Limited; Belize Telecommunications (Overseas) Limited; BTL Mobile Services Limited;  Telemedia Investments Limited.

The Company operates under an Individual Telecommunications License, issued by the Public Utilities Commission ("PUC"). The
License expires on December 28, 2022 and thereafter is renewable for consecutive periods of five years, unless the PUC or the
Licensee serves not less than one year's written notice to the contrary.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

The consolidated financial statements of Belize Telemedia Limited Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
to the extent they have not already been disclosed in the other notes to the financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of
Belize Telemedia Limited and its subsidiaries.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The adoption of these
amendments has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.



BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 8
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)
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assets to qualify as a business. To be considered a business an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes
and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce additional guidance that helps to determine whether a
substantive process has been acquired.

The amendments introduce an optional concentration test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar assets.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16)
The amendment extends, by one year, the May 2020 amendment above that provides lessees with an exemption from assessing
whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16)
The amendment provides lessees with an exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification.

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (continued):

Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
The amendments include consequential amendments to affected Standards so that they refer to the new Framework. Not all
amendments, however, update those pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from the Framework so that they
refer to the revised Conceptual Framework. Some pronouncements are only updated to indicate which version of the Framework
they are referencing to (the IASC Framework adopted by the IASB in 2001, the IASB Framework of 2010, or the new revised
Framework of 2018) or to indicate that definitions in the Standard have not been updated with the new definitions developed in the
revised Conceptual Framework.

The Standards which are amended are IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34, IAS 37, IAS 38, IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19,
IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)
The amendments introduce a practical expedient for modifications required by the reform, clarify that hedge accounting is not
discontinued solely because of the IBOR reform, and introduce disclosures that allow users to understand the nature and extent of
risks arising from the IBOR reform to which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages those risks as well as the entity’s
progress in transitioning from IBORs to alternative benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing this transition.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

(iv) New and amended standards in issue but not yet effective:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)
The amendments clarify that entities would continue to apply certain hedge accounting requirements assuming that the interest rate
benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and cash flows from the hedging instrument are based will not be altered as a result of
interest rate benchmark reform.
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(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with IFRS 

(ii) Historical cost convention 

Belize Telemedia Limited is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Belize. The address of its registered
office is #1 St. Thomas Street, Esquivel Telecom Centre, Belize City, Belize.

Belize Telemedia Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together, the Group) provide communication products, services and a
broad range of voice, broadband and data communication services including fixed and mobile telephone services and internet
services within Belize. 

The Group adopted the amendments below for the first time in the current reporting period.  

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value and assets held for sale measured at fair value less costs to sell.

The Group includes Belize Telemedia Limited (the parent company) which provides telecommunication services and its wholly-
owned subsidiaries who are Telemedia Free Zone Limited which provides telecommunication services in the Designated Processing
Area (DPA) at Santa Elena, Corozal; BTL Digicell Limited which operates the Mobile LTE Advanced network; Business Enterprises
Systems Limited ("BESL"), which sells telecommunication products, rents telecommunication equipment, and provides other non-
telecommunications services; International Communication Services Limited and International Communication Services (Belize
District) Limited which operate in the DPA at Mile 13 1/2 on the Northern Highway; International Communication Services (Cayo
District) Limited; Belize Telecommunications (Overseas) Limited; BTL Mobile Services Limited;  Telemedia Investments Limited.

The Company operates under an Individual Telecommunications License, issued by the Public Utilities Commission ("PUC"). The
License expires on December 28, 2022 and thereafter is renewable for consecutive periods of five years, unless the PUC or the
Licensee serves not less than one year's written notice to the contrary.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

The consolidated financial statements of Belize Telemedia Limited Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS. The financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). 

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
to the extent they have not already been disclosed in the other notes to the financial statements. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of
Belize Telemedia Limited and its subsidiaries.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The adoption of these
amendments has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 

IFRS 9

IFRS 16

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)
The amendments update an outdated reference to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 without significantly changing the
requirements in the standard.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or
loss.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)
The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

(iv) New and amended standards in issue but not yet effective (continued):

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent’
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial
liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in
order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Deferral of Effective Date (Amendment to IAS 1)
The January 2020 amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether,
in the statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due
or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current. This amendment defers the effective date of the January 2020
amendments by one year, so that entities would be required to apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020
Makes amendments to the following standards:

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new
definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty. The amendments clarify that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information
or new developments is not the correction of an error.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 

2.2 Principles of consolidation 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in comprehensive income.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of income,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the parent has control. The parent controls an entity when the
parent is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the parent. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
The amendments require that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting policies.
Further amendments explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy. Examples of when an accounting policy is likely
to be material are added. To support the amendment, the Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and
demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process’ described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The parent applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the parent is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with IAS 39
either in comprehensive income or as a change to other comprehensive income. A contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

(i) Subsidiaries

The parent recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries are changed if necessary to ensure consistency with Group policies. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 

IFRS 9

IFRS 16

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

The following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022. The adoption of these
amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in the Group's financial
statements.

Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3)
The amendments update an outdated reference to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3 without significantly changing the
requirements in the standard.

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16)
The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or
loss.

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37)
The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that
relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge
for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract).

(iv) New and amended standards in issue but not yet effective (continued):

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 per cent’
test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial
liability. An entity includes only fees paid or received between the entity (the borrower) and
the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other’s
behalf.

The amendment to Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 removes from the
example the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in
order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current — Deferral of Effective Date (Amendment to IAS 1)
The January 2020 amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the requirements by helping companies determine whether,
in the statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due
or potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current. This amendment defers the effective date of the January 2020
amendments by one year, so that entities would be required to apply the amendments for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020
Makes amendments to the following standards:

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)
The amendments replace the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new
definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.
Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty. The amendments clarify that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information
or new developments is not the correction of an error.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 

2.2 Principles of consolidation 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in comprehensive income.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement of income,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position respectively.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the parent has control. The parent controls an entity when the
parent is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the parent. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2)
The amendments require that an entity discloses its material accounting policies, instead of its significant accounting policies.
Further amendments explain how an entity can identify a material accounting policy. Examples of when an accounting policy is likely
to be material are added. To support the amendment, the Board has also developed guidance and examples to explain and
demonstrate the application of the ‘four-step materiality process’ described in IFRS Practice Statement 2.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The parent applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the group. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired, liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the parent is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes
to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with IAS 39
either in comprehensive income or as a change to other comprehensive income. A contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognized directly in the statement of comprehensive income.

(i) Subsidiaries

The parent recognizes any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealized gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. The accounting
policies of subsidiaries are changed if necessary to ensure consistency with Group policies. 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

2.4

(ii) Derecognition 

(iii) Measurement 

Financial liabilities

A financial liability (or part of it) is extinguished when the debtor either (a) discharges the liability (or part of it) by paying the creditor,
normally with cash, other financial assets, goods or services; or (b) is legally released from primary responsibility for the liability (or
part of it) either by process of law or by the creditor. 

The Group’s financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the entity has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. 

The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on a financial asset in default when it meets the following criteria:

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) in accordance with the criteria mentioned in the preceding paragraphs. 

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

At initial recognition, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss. 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. 

The Group reclassifies its financial instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

The Group assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The Group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortized cost and
contract assets.

Impairment of financial assets 

Financial instruments (continued)

BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 11
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation (continued)

2.3

2.4

Financial assets

(i) Classification 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in comprehensive income. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to comprehensive income. 

(ii) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

(a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value, either through OCI or profit and loss; and
(b) those to be measured at amortized cost.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within 'finance income or expense'. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within 'sundry income/expense'.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded either in profit or loss or OCI. 

Financial instruments

The Group classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories:  

Foreign currency translation

(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in 'Belize
dollars' (BZ$), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows. 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity in another
entity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

2.4

(ii) Derecognition 

(iii) Measurement 

Financial liabilities

A financial liability (or part of it) is extinguished when the debtor either (a) discharges the liability (or part of it) by paying the creditor,
normally with cash, other financial assets, goods or services; or (b) is legally released from primary responsibility for the liability (or
part of it) either by process of law or by the creditor. 

The Group’s financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

The Group directly reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the entity has no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. 

The Group recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on a financial asset in default when it meets the following criteria:

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) unless it is measured at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) in accordance with the criteria mentioned in the preceding paragraphs. 

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

At initial recognition, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL), the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or loss. 

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. 

The Group reclassifies its financial instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes. 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

The Group assumes that the credit risk on financial assets has increased significantly if it is more than 90 days past due. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating
ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward looking information.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

The Group recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortized cost and
contract assets.

Impairment of financial assets 

Financial instruments (continued)
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation (continued)

2.3

2.4

Financial assets

(i) Classification 

(i) Functional and presentation currency 

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount recognized in comprehensive income. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to comprehensive income. 

(ii) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control

(a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value, either through OCI or profit and loss; and
(b) those to be measured at amortized cost.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the statement of
comprehensive income within 'finance income or expense'. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within 'sundry income/expense'.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. 

(ii) Transactions and balances

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions – that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will be recorded either in profit or loss or OCI. 

Financial instruments

The Group classifies financial assets in the following measurement categories:  

Foreign currency translation

(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The consolidated financial statements are presented in 'Belize
dollars' (BZ$), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash
flows. 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to both a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or equity in another
entity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

2.4

Measurement of ECLs:

Credit-impaired financial assets: 

Write-off:

2.5

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due. 

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘bad debts recoveries’ in the statement of profit or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level. 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized costs are credit impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. 

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).   

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position:

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items and any cost incurred to bring the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

(ii) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 

(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to action such as realizing
security if any is held; or

Life-time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk. 

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Financial instruments (continued)

Property, plant and equipment 

- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event; 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

2.5

Type of assets: Useful life 

                                    Buildings (wood, concrete) 25 or 40  years
                                    Transmission equipment 7-10 years 

                                    Switching equipment 5-20 years 
                                    Tower equipment 10-20 years 

                                    Other plant and equipment 10-20 years 
                                    Motor vehicles 5 years 

                                    Computer equipment 4-5 years 

2.6 Intangible assets

2.7 Leases 

(i) Leases where the Group is the lessee

Separately acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software.  

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Computer software comprises computer software purchased from third parties. 

For any new contracts entered into on or after April 1, 2019, the Group considers whether the contract is, or contains a lease. A
lease is defined as 'a contract or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time
on exchange for consideration'. To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which
are whether:

The residual values of assets, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, and adjusted prospectively if
appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date.

Land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amount to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

(a) The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group
(b) The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period
of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract.
(c) The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct "how and for what purpose" the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within
"Other income" in the statement of comprehensive income. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

(ii) Computer software

(i) Licenses 

Intangible assets have a finite life and are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life: 3 to 10
years.

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use.  The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is recognized in profit or loss. 

Software integral to an item of hardware equipment is classified as property, plant and equipment.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense when they are incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

2.4

Measurement of ECLs:

Credit-impaired financial assets: 

Write-off:

2.5

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for
recovery of amounts due. 

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘bad debts recoveries’ in the statement of profit or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the
borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the
write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level. 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized costs are credit impaired. A financial
asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred. 

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e.
the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).   

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position:

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred. 

Property, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items and any cost incurred to bring the asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

(ii) the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 

(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to action such as realizing
security if any is held; or

Life-time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit
risk. 

- it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or 
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Financial instruments (continued)

Property, plant and equipment 

- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event; 
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

2.5

Type of assets: Useful life 

                                    Buildings (wood, concrete) 25 or 40  years
                                    Transmission equipment 7-10 years 

                                    Switching equipment 5-20 years 
                                    Tower equipment 10-20 years 

                                    Other plant and equipment 10-20 years 
                                    Motor vehicles 5 years 

                                    Computer equipment 4-5 years 

2.6 Intangible assets

2.7 Leases 

(i) Leases where the Group is the lessee

Separately acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software.  

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Computer software comprises computer software purchased from third parties. 

For any new contracts entered into on or after April 1, 2019, the Group considers whether the contract is, or contains a lease. A
lease is defined as 'a contract or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time
on exchange for consideration'. To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three key evaluations which
are whether:

The residual values of assets, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, and adjusted prospectively if
appropriate, if there is an indication of a significant change since the last reporting date.

Land and assets in the course of construction are not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amount to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

(a) The contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being
identified at the time the asset is made available to the Group
(b) The Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the period
of use, considering its rights within the defined scope of the contract.
(c) The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use. The Group assess whether it has
the right to direct "how and for what purpose" the asset is used throughout the period of use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognized within
"Other income" in the statement of comprehensive income. 

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

(ii) Computer software

(i) Licenses 

Intangible assets have a finite life and are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost
less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life: 3 to 10
years.

The carrying amount of an intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use.  The gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is recognized in profit or loss. 

Software integral to an item of hardware equipment is classified as property, plant and equipment.

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense when they are incurred.



BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 16
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

2.

2.9 Impairment of non- financial assets 

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or assets not ready to use are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and which forms an integral part of the
Group's cash management. Bank overdraft facilities available to finance capital expenditures are included in borrowings.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The Group recognizes lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables using the simplified approach. The expected credit
losses on these financial assets are estimated based on the Group's historical credit loss experience and an analysis of the debtor’s
current financial position, adjusted for various factors. The factors include issues specific to the debtors, the general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The time value of money is included where appropriate. The Group writes off a trade receivable
when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within 30 days and are therefore all classified as current. Trade receivables are recognized initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other payables

Cash and cash equivalents

Prepayments

Prepayments represent costs paid in advance of their intended use or coverage. Prepayments are expensed in the period the 
service is received.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the "first-in, first-out" (FIFO) method.
Cost comprises of direct material costs (which includes all shipping, importation costs and delivery costs to the warehouse), direct
labour and overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventories are impaired, the
carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less cost to complete and sell and the impairment loss is recognized immediately in
the statement of comprehensive income. 

Inventories

Goods held on consignment are excluded from inventories and are covered by the Group's all risk insurance, as declared in the 
listing, in the event of loss.
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2.

2.7 Leases (continued)

2.8 Non-current assets held for sale

The Group's accounting policy under IFRS 16 has not changed from the comparative period. As a lessor the Group classifies its
leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are shown separately from other assets and liabilities.

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. 

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in fixed payments.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed),
variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments
arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

At commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale.

Lease income from operating leases are recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including
depreciation, incurred in earning the lease income are recognized as an expense.

The Group recognizes assets held under a finance lease in its statement of financial position and presents them as a receivable at
an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The net investment in the lease is the gross investment in the lease discounted
at the interest rate implicit in the lease. Subsequently, the recognition of finance income is based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment in the finance lease.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognized at the date of derecognition.

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group recognizes finance leases as assets and liabilities in its statement of financial
position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each determined at the inception of the lease. Subsequently, lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the statement of financial position. 

(ii) Leases where the Group is the lessor

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
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2.

2.9 Impairment of non- financial assets 

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or assets not ready to use are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-generating units). Prior impairments of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)
are reviewed for possible reversal at each reporting date.

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the financial year which are
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and which forms an integral part of the
Group's cash management. Bank overdraft facilities available to finance capital expenditures are included in borrowings.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The Group recognizes lifetime expected credit losses (ECL) for trade receivables using the simplified approach. The expected credit
losses on these financial assets are estimated based on the Group's historical credit loss experience and an analysis of the debtor’s
current financial position, adjusted for various factors. The factors include issues specific to the debtors, the general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of
conditions at the reporting date. The time value of money is included where appropriate. The Group writes off a trade receivable
when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. 

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. They
are generally due for settlement within 30 days and are therefore all classified as current. Trade receivables are recognized initially
at the amount of consideration that is unconditional, unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognized
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

Trade and other receivables 

Trade and other payables

Cash and cash equivalents

Prepayments

Prepayments represent costs paid in advance of their intended use or coverage. Prepayments are expensed in the period the 
service is received.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the "first-in, first-out" (FIFO) method.
Cost comprises of direct material costs (which includes all shipping, importation costs and delivery costs to the warehouse), direct
labour and overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. At each reporting date, inventories are assessed for impairment. If inventories are impaired, the
carrying amount is reduced to its selling price less cost to complete and sell and the impairment loss is recognized immediately in
the statement of comprehensive income. 

Inventories

Goods held on consignment are excluded from inventories and are covered by the Group's all risk insurance, as declared in the 
listing, in the event of loss.
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2.

2.7 Leases (continued)

2.8 Non-current assets held for sale

The Group's accounting policy under IFRS 16 has not changed from the comparative period. As a lessor the Group classifies its
leases as either operating or finance leases. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

On the statement of financial position, right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are shown separately from other assets and liabilities.

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to the earlier of the end
of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. 

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in relation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss
on a straight line basis over the lease term.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest. It is remeasured to
reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes in fixed payments.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed),
variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments
arising from options reasonably certain to be exercised.

At commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Group's incremental borrowing rate.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as held for sale.

Lease income from operating leases are recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including
depreciation, incurred in earning the lease income are recognized as an expense.

The Group recognizes assets held under a finance lease in its statement of financial position and presents them as a receivable at
an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The net investment in the lease is the gross investment in the lease discounted
at the interest rate implicit in the lease. Subsequently, the recognition of finance income is based on a pattern reflecting a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment in the finance lease.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less costs to sell. A gain is
recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale of the non-current
asset is recognized at the date of derecognition.

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group recognizes finance leases as assets and liabilities in its statement of financial
position at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments,
each determined at the inception of the lease. Subsequently, lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the
reduction of the outstanding liability.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are presented separately from the other assets in the statement of financial position. 

(ii) Leases where the Group is the lessor

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
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2.

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to
which it relates. 

The tax expense for the period comprises of current year tax. The tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws in force
during the financial reporting period. Management evaluates situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Complying with deferred taxation accounting pursuant to International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12 is not applicable.  

Taxation

Customer Deposit

Customer deposits represent security deposits made by customers upon initial creation of relevant service accounts with the 
Company. The deposit is refunded net of arrears upon closure of the customer account.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents funds received from customers for services that have not yet been delivered. Deferred income is 
recognized as revenue in the period in which the service is provided to the customer.

Borrowings 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. 

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.   

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.  Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Borrowing costs

Taxes are based on monthly gross revenue receipts and are payable within the following month. 
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2.

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

The Group has two defined contribution plans, one for management and one for non-management staff. The defined contribution
plans are pension plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The plans are administered by separate Board of Trustees and the funds are held
outside the Group.  

Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of
issuing the equity instruments. 

Ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity. Preference shares are shares which entitles the holder to a fixed dividend,
whose payment takes priority over that of dividends paid on ordinary shares.

The Group pays contributions to privately administered pension plans on a mandatory or contractual basis. The contributions are
recognized as staff pension expense when they are due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the
excess is recognized as an asset. 

Employee benefits

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, restructuring costs and environmental restoration are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably measured.  Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditures required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. 

Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of services

(i) Pension obligations

(ii) Termination benefits

Share capital

The Group recognizes revenue when a performance obligation specified in a contract with a customer is performed, the amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance of that obligation is identified, and the Group expects to be entitled to the said
consideration in exchange for transferring the contracted goods and services to the customer. Revenue is measured based on the
consideration receivable, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties and shown net of general sales tax, returns, rebates
and discounts. Group revenue is reported after eliminating sales within the Group. 

The Group recognizes termination benefits in accordance with the labour laws of Belize, union agreement and Group policy. 

The Group earns revenue mainly from providing the following telecommunication services: access charges, airtime usage, fixed line
usage, messaging, interconnection fees, data services and information provision, connection fees and equipment sales. Products
and services may be sold separately or in bundled packages. Revenue for access charges, airtime usage and messaging by
contract customers is recognized as revenue when the services are performed, with unbilled revenue resulting from services already
provided, billed at the end of the billing cycle. Unearned revenue from services to be provided in future periods is deferred. Revenue
from the sale of prepaid credit is deferred until such time as the customer uses the credit, or it expires.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 



BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 17
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

2.

2.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

2.19

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognized in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortized over the period of the facility to
which it relates. 

The tax expense for the period comprises of current year tax. The tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws in force
during the financial reporting period. Management evaluates situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. 

Complying with deferred taxation accounting pursuant to International Accounting Standard (IAS) 12 is not applicable.  

Taxation

Customer Deposit

Customer deposits represent security deposits made by customers upon initial creation of relevant service accounts with the 
Company. The deposit is refunded net of arrears upon closure of the customer account.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents funds received from customers for services that have not yet been delivered. Deferred income is 
recognized as revenue in the period in which the service is provided to the customer.

Borrowings 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period. 

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to extinguish all or part
of the liability (debt for equity swap), a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss, which is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any noncash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss as other income or
finance costs.   

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings, pending their expenditure on qualifying assets, is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.  Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Borrowing costs

Taxes are based on monthly gross revenue receipts and are payable within the following month. 
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2.

2.20

2.21

2.22

2.23

The Group has two defined contribution plans, one for management and one for non-management staff. The defined contribution
plans are pension plans under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior periods. The plans are administered by separate Board of Trustees and the funds are held
outside the Group.  

Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of
issuing the equity instruments. 

Ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity. Preference shares are shares which entitles the holder to a fixed dividend,
whose payment takes priority over that of dividends paid on ordinary shares.

The Group pays contributions to privately administered pension plans on a mandatory or contractual basis. The contributions are
recognized as staff pension expense when they are due. If contribution payments exceed the contribution due for service, the
excess is recognized as an asset. 

Employee benefits

Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, restructuring costs and environmental restoration are recognized when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount can be reliably measured.  Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditures required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. 

Revenue recognition

(a) Sales of services

(i) Pension obligations

(ii) Termination benefits

Share capital

The Group recognizes revenue when a performance obligation specified in a contract with a customer is performed, the amount of
the transaction price allocated to the performance of that obligation is identified, and the Group expects to be entitled to the said
consideration in exchange for transferring the contracted goods and services to the customer. Revenue is measured based on the
consideration receivable, excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties and shown net of general sales tax, returns, rebates
and discounts. Group revenue is reported after eliminating sales within the Group. 

The Group recognizes termination benefits in accordance with the labour laws of Belize, union agreement and Group policy. 

The Group earns revenue mainly from providing the following telecommunication services: access charges, airtime usage, fixed line
usage, messaging, interconnection fees, data services and information provision, connection fees and equipment sales. Products
and services may be sold separately or in bundled packages. Revenue for access charges, airtime usage and messaging by
contract customers is recognized as revenue when the services are performed, with unbilled revenue resulting from services already
provided, billed at the end of the billing cycle. Unearned revenue from services to be provided in future periods is deferred. Revenue
from the sale of prepaid credit is deferred until such time as the customer uses the credit, or it expires.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
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2.

2.23

Sales of SIMs in bundled packages:

Bundled Packages:

Costs to obtain a contract are recognized as expenses when incurred as the amortization period of the asset that the Group would
otherwise recognize is less than one year.

The financial component is not considered significant as the period between the moment when the promised good or service is
transferred to a customer and the moment when the customer pays for that good or service is less than one year. The vast majority
of contracts issued do not include a significant financing component.

(b) Sale of goods

The Group has adopted the practical expedients associated with the application of the new criteria that were adopted in the
implementation of the standard with the objective of reducing the complexity in its application. The main practical expedients that
the Group adopted are:

Under IFRS 15, the total consideration in the contract must be allocated to all the products and services provided, for example, SIMs
and mobile telecommunication services, based on their stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices are determined
based on the list prices at which the Group sells the SIMs and telecommunication services.

Bundled offers that combine different elements are assessed to determine whether it is necessary to separate the different
identifiable components and apply the corresponding revenue recognition policy to each element. Total package revenue is
allocated among the identified elements based on their respective values. Under IFRS 15, for bundled packages that combine voice,
text and data services, the total revenue will be treated as one single performance obligation and will be recognized when (or as) the
obligation is satisfied. 

Revenue from interconnection fees is recognized at the time the services are performed.

Revenue recognition (continued)

When revenue arrangements include multiple deliverables, the revenue recognition criteria are applied separately to each
transaction. In certain circumstances it is necessary to separate a transaction into identifiable components to reflect the separate
obligations of the transaction. Deliverables are separated into individual transactions when the following two conditions are met: (1)
the deliverable has value to the customer on a stand-alone basis and (2) there is evidence of the fair value of the item. The
arrangement consideration is then allocated to each separate unit of accounting based on its relative fair value.

Revenue from data services and information provision is recognized when the Group has performed the related service and,
depending on the nature of the service, is recognized either at the gross amount billed to the customer or the amount receivable by
the Group as commission for facilitating the service.

(c) Multiple element sales 

Revenue for device sales is recognized when the device is delivered to the end customer and the sale is considered complete. For
device sales made to intermediaries, revenue is recognized if the significant risks associated with the device are transferred to the
intermediary and the intermediary has no general right of return. If the significant risks are not transferred, revenue recognition is
deferred until sale of the device to an end customer by the intermediary or the expiry of the right of return.

Revenue from prepaid sales is recognized based on extent of consumption by customer. Allocations are done to respective revenue
streams based on the type of service usage.

Customer connection revenue is recognized together with the related equipment revenue to the extent that the aggregate equipment
and connection revenue does not exceed the fair value of the equipment delivered to the customer. Any customer connection
revenue not recognized together with related equipment revenue is deferred and recognized over the period in which services are
expected to be provided to the customer.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 20
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

2.

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27 Exceptional items

2.28 Segment reporting

3.

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements, when it is necessary to do so to provide further
understanding of the financial performance of the Group. They are material items of income or expense that are shown separately
due to the significance of their nature or amount. 

The Group provides for bad and doubtful debts based on an evaluation of the collectability of individual debtor balances. The Group
estimates expected credit losses based on the Group's historical credit loss experience and an analysis of the debtor's current
financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant estimates and judgements 

The Group has one operating segment. This is based on the management and internal reporting structure which combines the
Group's business units and is consistent with the manner in which internal reporting is provided to and reviewed by the Group's chief
operating decision-maker.  The Group has determined the Board of Directors as its chief operating decision-maker.  

The estimate for obsolete inventories is based on an evaluation of slow-moving items, particularly inventories that have not moved in
line with its useful life.

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. During the
current year, there have been no changes to the useful life of assets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association: (I) Section 128 (B), "Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the holder of
the Special Share, upon the 21st day after the publication of the audited balance sheet and accounts for each financial year (the
Dividend Date), the Directors shall be deemed to have recommended and the Company in general meeting be deemed to have
declared a final dividend payable in cash such that the total dividends shall be equivalent to 45% of the Company's profits available
for distribution divided by the total ordinary shares". (II) Section 128 (D), "The Company's profits available for distribution are its
accumulated realized profits, so far as not previously utilized by distribution or capitalization, less any accumulated realized losses,
so far as not previously written off in a reduction or reorganization of capital duly made". 

Interest income

Dividend distribution

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  

Finance and operating costs

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables is
recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Finance and operating costs are recognized in the period incurred.
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2.

2.23

Sales of SIMs in bundled packages:

Bundled Packages:

Costs to obtain a contract are recognized as expenses when incurred as the amortization period of the asset that the Group would
otherwise recognize is less than one year.

The financial component is not considered significant as the period between the moment when the promised good or service is
transferred to a customer and the moment when the customer pays for that good or service is less than one year. The vast majority
of contracts issued do not include a significant financing component.

(b) Sale of goods

The Group has adopted the practical expedients associated with the application of the new criteria that were adopted in the
implementation of the standard with the objective of reducing the complexity in its application. The main practical expedients that
the Group adopted are:

Under IFRS 15, the total consideration in the contract must be allocated to all the products and services provided, for example, SIMs
and mobile telecommunication services, based on their stand-alone selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices are determined
based on the list prices at which the Group sells the SIMs and telecommunication services.

Bundled offers that combine different elements are assessed to determine whether it is necessary to separate the different
identifiable components and apply the corresponding revenue recognition policy to each element. Total package revenue is
allocated among the identified elements based on their respective values. Under IFRS 15, for bundled packages that combine voice,
text and data services, the total revenue will be treated as one single performance obligation and will be recognized when (or as) the
obligation is satisfied. 

Revenue from interconnection fees is recognized at the time the services are performed.

Revenue recognition (continued)

When revenue arrangements include multiple deliverables, the revenue recognition criteria are applied separately to each
transaction. In certain circumstances it is necessary to separate a transaction into identifiable components to reflect the separate
obligations of the transaction. Deliverables are separated into individual transactions when the following two conditions are met: (1)
the deliverable has value to the customer on a stand-alone basis and (2) there is evidence of the fair value of the item. The
arrangement consideration is then allocated to each separate unit of accounting based on its relative fair value.

Revenue from data services and information provision is recognized when the Group has performed the related service and,
depending on the nature of the service, is recognized either at the gross amount billed to the customer or the amount receivable by
the Group as commission for facilitating the service.

(c) Multiple element sales 

Revenue for device sales is recognized when the device is delivered to the end customer and the sale is considered complete. For
device sales made to intermediaries, revenue is recognized if the significant risks associated with the device are transferred to the
intermediary and the intermediary has no general right of return. If the significant risks are not transferred, revenue recognition is
deferred until sale of the device to an end customer by the intermediary or the expiry of the right of return.

Revenue from prepaid sales is recognized based on extent of consumption by customer. Allocations are done to respective revenue
streams based on the type of service usage.

Customer connection revenue is recognized together with the related equipment revenue to the extent that the aggregate equipment
and connection revenue does not exceed the fair value of the equipment delivered to the customer. Any customer connection
revenue not recognized together with related equipment revenue is deferred and recognized over the period in which services are
expected to be provided to the customer.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
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2.

2.24

2.25

2.26

2.27 Exceptional items

2.28 Segment reporting

3.

Exceptional items are disclosed separately in the financial statements, when it is necessary to do so to provide further
understanding of the financial performance of the Group. They are material items of income or expense that are shown separately
due to the significance of their nature or amount. 

The Group provides for bad and doubtful debts based on an evaluation of the collectability of individual debtor balances. The Group
estimates expected credit losses based on the Group's historical credit loss experience and an analysis of the debtor's current
financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the
debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date, including
time value of money where appropriate.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Significant estimates and judgements 

The Group has one operating segment. This is based on the management and internal reporting structure which combines the
Group's business units and is consistent with the manner in which internal reporting is provided to and reviewed by the Group's chief
operating decision-maker.  The Group has determined the Board of Directors as its chief operating decision-maker.  

The estimate for obsolete inventories is based on an evaluation of slow-moving items, particularly inventories that have not moved in
line with its useful life.

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. During the
current year, there have been no changes to the useful life of assets.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association: (I) Section 128 (B), "Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the holder of
the Special Share, upon the 21st day after the publication of the audited balance sheet and accounts for each financial year (the
Dividend Date), the Directors shall be deemed to have recommended and the Company in general meeting be deemed to have
declared a final dividend payable in cash such that the total dividends shall be equivalent to 45% of the Company's profits available
for distribution divided by the total ordinary shares". (II) Section 128 (D), "The Company's profits available for distribution are its
accumulated realized profits, so far as not previously utilized by distribution or capitalization, less any accumulated realized losses,
so far as not previously written off in a reduction or reorganization of capital duly made". 

Interest income

Dividend distribution

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  

Finance and operating costs

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method. When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of
the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables is
recognized using the original effective interest rate.

Finance and operating costs are recognized in the period incurred.
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3.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Credit risk

(i) Risk management 

(ii) Impairment of financial assets 

March 31, 2021
Current More than 30 

days past due 
More than 60 

days past due 
More than 120 
days past due Total 

Expected loss rate 11.2% 16.2% 17.1% 48.4%

Gross carrying amount 7,759                  4,281                  1,408                38,704                   52,152 

Loss allowance 867                     694                     241                18,750                   20,552 

For customers, the Group has adopted credit policies which include assessing the customer's credit worthiness, requesting a
deposit before credit is granted, regular review of credit limits and pursuing legal recourse to collect overdue balances. 

The fair value of items sold on a finance lease is estimated to be the discounted cash flows arising from the payments due under the
finance lease agreement.  

The Group measures non-current assets classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Fair value less costs to sell is determined through the engagement of an independent expert experienced in the sale of such
assets.

The Group's intangible assets mainly consists of licenses and computer software. Licenses are amortized over their estimated
useful lives of three to five years and computer software over five years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  (continued)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. For cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, the
Group does business with only reputable entities. 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, and credit exposures to customers.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, mainly, credit risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity
risk. 

Whilst cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the impairment loss identified was
considered immaterial.  

The Group's only type of financial asset that would be subjected to the expected credit loss model is trade receivables. 

The Group applies judgement in determining whether a contract is, or contains, a lease and in estimating the incremental borrowing
rate of the lease. 

On that basis, the loss allowance as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 was determined as follows:
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4.

March 31, 2020
Current More than 30 

days past due 
More than 60 

days past due 
More than 120 
days past due Total 

Expected loss rate 18.1% 32.7% 39.1% 47.8%

Gross carrying amount                  9,527                  5,386                  3,422                23,762                   42,097 

Loss allowance                  1,721                  1,763                  1,339                11,368                   16,191 

(d) Liquidity risk

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk

(c) Interest rate risk

Liquidity risk - is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's objective when managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Interest rate risk - is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant exposure to interest-rate risk on its assets held in the form of bank deposits since these assets earn fixed interest
rates. The Group has managed to mitigate changes in interest and interest rate risk on borrowings by negotiating fixed interest rates
and terms with the local and foreign financial institutions that provide funding to the Group. 

Foreign currency risk - is the risk that the value of a financial transaction will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rate.
The Group incurs currency risk exposure in respect of overseas trade purchases and commitments made in currencies other than
Belize dollars and repayable in foreign currencies, mainly in US dollars. Its exposure to losses from currency risk is mitigated by the
fact that the official exchange rate for the Belize dollar is tied to the US dollar at BZ$2 to US$1.  

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item. 

Trade receivables are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery which include failure of customer to engage
in a repayment plan, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period greater than 120 days past due.  

The Group performs cash flow forecasting to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs whilst maintaining a
sufficient buffer in its undrawn committed borrowing facilities so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on
any of its borrowing facilities. 

In addition, the Group maintains the following lines of credit:
- Secured $10 million overdraft facility. Interest is paid at 6.25%. The facility has a 365 days maturity that renews automatically at
the option of the Group.
- Secured $15 million overdraft facility. Interest is paid at 6.25%. The facility has a 365 days maturity that renews automatically at
the option of the Group.
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3.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Credit risk

(i) Risk management 

(ii) Impairment of financial assets 

March 31, 2021
Current More than 30 

days past due 
More than 60 

days past due 
More than 120 
days past due Total 

Expected loss rate 11.2% 16.2% 17.1% 48.4%

Gross carrying amount 7,759                  4,281                  1,408                38,704                   52,152 

Loss allowance 867                     694                     241                18,750                   20,552 

For customers, the Group has adopted credit policies which include assessing the customer's credit worthiness, requesting a
deposit before credit is granted, regular review of credit limits and pursuing legal recourse to collect overdue balances. 

The fair value of items sold on a finance lease is estimated to be the discounted cash flows arising from the payments due under the
finance lease agreement.  

The Group measures non-current assets classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Fair value less costs to sell is determined through the engagement of an independent expert experienced in the sale of such
assets.

The Group's intangible assets mainly consists of licenses and computer software. Licenses are amortized over their estimated
useful lives of three to five years and computer software over five years.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS  (continued)

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. For cash and cash equivalents and deposits with banks and financial institutions, the
Group does business with only reputable entities. 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, and credit exposures to customers.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, mainly, credit risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity
risk. 

Whilst cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the impairment loss identified was
considered immaterial.  

The Group's only type of financial asset that would be subjected to the expected credit loss model is trade receivables. 

The Group applies judgement in determining whether a contract is, or contains, a lease and in estimating the incremental borrowing
rate of the lease. 

On that basis, the loss allowance as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 was determined as follows:
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March 31, 2020
Current More than 30 

days past due 
More than 60 

days past due 
More than 120 
days past due Total 

Expected loss rate 18.1% 32.7% 39.1% 47.8%

Gross carrying amount                  9,527                  5,386                  3,422                23,762                   42,097 

Loss allowance                  1,721                  1,763                  1,339                11,368                   16,191 

(d) Liquidity risk

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk

(c) Interest rate risk

Liquidity risk - is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's objective when managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Interest rate risk - is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The Group
has no significant exposure to interest-rate risk on its assets held in the form of bank deposits since these assets earn fixed interest
rates. The Group has managed to mitigate changes in interest and interest rate risk on borrowings by negotiating fixed interest rates
and terms with the local and foreign financial institutions that provide funding to the Group. 

Foreign currency risk - is the risk that the value of a financial transaction will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rate.
The Group incurs currency risk exposure in respect of overseas trade purchases and commitments made in currencies other than
Belize dollars and repayable in foreign currencies, mainly in US dollars. Its exposure to losses from currency risk is mitigated by the
fact that the official exchange rate for the Belize dollar is tied to the US dollar at BZ$2 to US$1.  

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as net impairment losses within operating profit and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item. 

Trade receivables are written off where there is no reasonable expectation of recovery which include failure of customer to engage
in a repayment plan, and a failure to make contractual payments for a period greater than 120 days past due.  

The Group performs cash flow forecasting to ensure that it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs whilst maintaining a
sufficient buffer in its undrawn committed borrowing facilities so that the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants on
any of its borrowing facilities. 

In addition, the Group maintains the following lines of credit:
- Secured $10 million overdraft facility. Interest is paid at 6.25%. The facility has a 365 days maturity that renews automatically at
the option of the Group.
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4.

March 31, 2021
Within 3 
months

3 months 
to 1 year

Between 1
 and 5 years Over 5 years Total

Trade and other payables                  8,149                14,251                  2,023                       -                     24,423 
Lease liabilities                       -                       429                     825                       -                       1,254 
Borrowings                  9,121                12,170                36,799                19,710                   77,800 

               17,270                26,850                39,647                19,710                 103,477 
March 31, 2020
Trade and other payables                  6,805                21,959                  2,600                       -                     31,364 
Lease liabilities                       -                       653                  1,413                       -                       2,066 
Borrowings                29,414                  4,774                25,878                48,952                 109,018 

               36,219                27,386                29,891                48,952                 142,448 

(e)  Market risk

2021 2020

Total liabilities              127,202                 175,962 

Total equity              234,640                 228,186 
Debt to equity ratio                    0.54                       0.77 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of 'debt to equity'. Debt is calculated as total liabilities as shown in the statements of
financial position.  Total capital is calculated as total equity as shown in the statements of financial position.

The Group’s policy is to keep the ratio below 2.00.  The Group's 'debt to equity' ratio at March 31 was as follows:

Market risk- relates to unforeseeable factors that could occur both within the local market and also within the international
telecommunication market. Local market risk examples include the impact to the Group's business arising from activities of new or
existing competitors; local socio-economic factors which affect the insuring public and changes to the regulatory environment.
International market risk examples include availability of capacity from the international telecommunications market and pricing of
such capacity and global socio-economic factors which impact the local market. 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group minimizes its exposures to market risks by maintaining informational networks that allow early recognition of and
response to changing market conditions and also through maintaining close contacts with its customer base, local regulatory and
other governing authorities and international parties. 

(f) Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence, to sustain future development of the business, to maintain an optimal capital structure and to reduce the cost of capital.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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5. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2021 2020
Financial Assets

Financial assets at amortized cost
Trade and other receivables 35,468 35,648
Cash and cash equivalents 5,350 5,444

Finance lease receivable 15,574 16,289
Total Financial Assets 56,392 57,381

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Trade and other payables 24,423 31,364
Borrowings 77,800 109,018

Lease liabilities 1,254 2,066
Total Financial Liabilities 103,477 142,448

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and 
buildings

Network  
equipment Other assets 

Assets in
 the course of 
construction

Total

At March 31, 2019                                        59,987              541,872                49,322                71,576                 722,757 
Additions 34                       87                       90                36,708                   36,919 
Transfers                  4,672                83,097                (4,008)              (96,665)                  (12,904)
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,732)                       -                      (1,732)
At March 31, 2020                                      64,693              625,056                43,672                11,619                 745,040 
Additions                         9                       16                         5                  4,268                     4,298 
Transfers                     (28)                  1,700                     123                (2,032)                       (237)
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,810)                       -                      (1,810)
At March 31, 2021                                         64,674              626,772                41,990                13,855                 747,291 

Accumulated depreciation
At March 31, 2019                          14,490                           359,643                33,775                       -                   407,908 
Charge for the year 984                30,553                  2,670                       -                     34,207 
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,724)                       -                      (1,724)
At March 31, 2020                                       15,474              390,196                34,721                       -                   440,391 
Charge for the year                  1,589                33,141                  2,673                       -                     37,403 
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,681)                       -                      (1,681)
At March 31, 2021                17,063              423,337                35,713                       -                   476,113 

Carrying amount:
At March 31, 2020                                        49,219              234,860                  8,951                11,619                 304,649 
At March 31, 2021                                        47,611              203,435                  6,277                13,855                 271,178 

Other assets comprises of vehicles, computers and other equipment. 

Assets in course of construction (Special project assets) at March 31, 2021 consist mainly of materials and cables for installation,
additions for LTE network, FTTH network and other projects focused on network improvement.

Transfers for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 from assets in the course of construction to LTE sites, materials for several sales 
jobs and long haul projects.

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities of each category of financial instruments
held by the Group:
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Lease liabilities                       -                       653                  1,413                       -                       2,066 
Borrowings                29,414                  4,774                25,878                48,952                 109,018 

               36,219                27,386                29,891                48,952                 142,448 

(e)  Market risk

2021 2020

Total liabilities              127,202                 175,962 

Total equity              234,640                 228,186 
Debt to equity ratio                    0.54                       0.77 

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amounts of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital using a ratio of 'debt to equity'. Debt is calculated as total liabilities as shown in the statements of
financial position.  Total capital is calculated as total equity as shown in the statements of financial position.

The Group’s policy is to keep the ratio below 2.00.  The Group's 'debt to equity' ratio at March 31 was as follows:

Market risk- relates to unforeseeable factors that could occur both within the local market and also within the international
telecommunication market. Local market risk examples include the impact to the Group's business arising from activities of new or
existing competitors; local socio-economic factors which affect the insuring public and changes to the regulatory environment.
International market risk examples include availability of capacity from the international telecommunications market and pricing of
such capacity and global socio-economic factors which impact the local market. 

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date.

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group minimizes its exposures to market risks by maintaining informational networks that allow early recognition of and
response to changing market conditions and also through maintaining close contacts with its customer base, local regulatory and
other governing authorities and international parties. 

(f) Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence, to sustain future development of the business, to maintain an optimal capital structure and to reduce the cost of capital.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
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5. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

2021 2020
Financial Assets

Financial assets at amortized cost
Trade and other receivables 35,468 35,648
Cash and cash equivalents 5,350 5,444

Finance lease receivable 15,574 16,289
Total Financial Assets 56,392 57,381

Financial Liabilities

Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Trade and other payables 24,423 31,364
Borrowings 77,800 109,018

Lease liabilities 1,254 2,066
Total Financial Liabilities 103,477 142,448

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and 
buildings

Network  
equipment Other assets 

Assets in
 the course of 
construction

Total

At March 31, 2019                                        59,987              541,872                49,322                71,576                 722,757 
Additions 34                       87                       90                36,708                   36,919 
Transfers                  4,672                83,097                (4,008)              (96,665)                  (12,904)
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,732)                       -                      (1,732)
At March 31, 2020                                      64,693              625,056                43,672                11,619                 745,040 
Additions                         9                       16                         5                  4,268                     4,298 
Transfers                     (28)                  1,700                     123                (2,032)                       (237)
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,810)                       -                      (1,810)
At March 31, 2021                                         64,674              626,772                41,990                13,855                 747,291 

Accumulated depreciation
At March 31, 2019                          14,490                           359,643                33,775                       -                   407,908 
Charge for the year 984                30,553                  2,670                       -                     34,207 
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,724)                       -                      (1,724)
At March 31, 2020                                       15,474              390,196                34,721                       -                   440,391 
Charge for the year                  1,589                33,141                  2,673                       -                     37,403 
Disposals                       -                         -                  (1,681)                       -                      (1,681)
At March 31, 2021                17,063              423,337                35,713                       -                   476,113 

Carrying amount:
At March 31, 2020                                        49,219              234,860                  8,951                11,619                 304,649 
At March 31, 2021                                        47,611              203,435                  6,277                13,855                 271,178 

Other assets comprises of vehicles, computers and other equipment. 

Assets in course of construction (Special project assets) at March 31, 2021 consist mainly of materials and cables for installation,
additions for LTE network, FTTH network and other projects focused on network improvement.

Transfers for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 from assets in the course of construction to LTE sites, materials for several sales 
jobs and long haul projects.

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities of each category of financial instruments
held by the Group:
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GENERAL INFORMATION

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

(i) Compliance with IFRS 

(ii) Historical cost convention 

Telemedia Limited is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Belize. The address of its registered
office is #1 St. Thomas Street, Esquivel Telecom Centre, Belize City, Belize.

Telemedia Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (together, the Group) provide communication products, services and a
of voice, broadband and data communication services including fixed and mobile telephone services and internet

services within Belize. 

The Group adopted the amendments below for the first time in the current reporting period.  

(iii) New and amended standards adopted by the Group:

statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value and assets held for sale measured at fair value less costs to sell.

includes Belize Telemedia Limited (the parent company) which provides telecommunication services and its wholly-
subsidiaries who are Telemedia Free Zone Limited which provides telecommunication services in the Designated Processing

at Santa Elena, Corozal; BTL Digicell Limited which operates the Mobile LTE Advanced network; Business Enterprises
Limited ("BESL"), which sells telecommunication products, rents telecommunication equipment, and provides other non-

telecommunications services; International Communication Services Limited and International Communication Services (Belize
Limited which operate in the DPA at Mile 13 1/2 on the Northern Highway; International Communication Services (Cayo

District) Limited; Belize Telecommunications (Overseas) Limited; BTL Mobile Services Limited;  Telemedia Investments Limited.

Company operates under an Individual Telecommunications License, issued by the Public Utilities Commission ("PUC"). The
expires on December 28, 2022 and thereafter is renewable for consecutive periods of five years, unless the PUC or the

Licensee serves not less than one year's written notice to the contrary.

preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a

degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

consolidated financial statements of Belize Telemedia Limited Group have been prepared in accordance with International
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) applicable to

reporting under IFRS. The financial statements comply with IFRS as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB). 

provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
extent they have not already been disclosed in the other notes to the financial statements. These policies have been

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The financial statements are for the Group consisting of
Belize Telemedia Limited and its subsidiaries.

following amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020. The adoption of these
amendments has not had any material impact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in these financial statements.
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7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
At March 31, 2019                   37,564 
Additions                        606 
Transfers from assets in the course of construction (Note 6)                   12,904 
At March 31, 2020                   51,074 
Additions 1,886
Transfers from assets in the course of construction (Note 6) 237                       
At March 31, 2021 53,197

Accumulated amortization 
At March 31, 2019                   28,657 
Charge for the year                     2,006 
At March 31, 2020                   30,663 
Charge for the year                     4,205 
At March 31, 2021                   34,868 

Carrying amount:

At March 31, 2020                                                   20,411 

At March 31, 2021                                                   18,329 

8. RIGHT-OF- USE ASSETS

(i) Amounts recognized in the statement of financial position

The statement of financial position shows the following amounts relating to leases:
2021 2020

Right-of-use assets:
Tower space 667 1,314
Office space 399 544
Motor Vehicles 120 198

                 1,186                     2,056 

There were no additions to right-of-use assets during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 (2020- $279,000).

Lease liabilities:
Current 429 653
Non- current 825 1,413
Total current & non- current 1,254 2,066

The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liabilities recognized on the Group balance sheet is as follows:

Lease Payments Finance 
Charges

Net Present 
Values

Rental payments within one year 495 82 413
Rental payments due between one and two years 386 56 330
Rental payments due between two and three years 255 34 221
Rental payments due between three and four years 81 22 59
Rental payments due between four and five years 50 18 32
Rental payments due after five years 263 64 199
Total lease liabilities 1,530 276 1,254

Intangible assets consist of all purchased software mainly for billing, value added services and licenses for all Microsoft products
and additional software used by the Group.

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. For leases where the Group is a lessor, see Note 10. 
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8. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 

(ii) Amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income  

The statement of comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Amortization charge of right-of-use assets 2021 2020

Land lease -                        (32)                       
Tower space (461)                  (519)                     
Office space (145)                  (150)                     
Motor Vehicles (78)                    (82)                       

(684)                  (783)                     

Interest expense included in finance costs 130 177
Expense relating to low value assets that were included  in operating costs. (799)                  595

The total cash outflow for leases in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021 was $799,432 (2020- $950,000).

(iii) The Group's leasing activities and how they are accounted for

9. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

I. Americas Region Caribbean Ring System (ARCOS-1)

Cost - Arcos -1
At March 31, 2019 8,103                    
Additions -                           
At March 31, 2020 8,103                    
Additions -                           
At March 31, 2021 8,103                    

Accumulated amortization 
At March 31, 2019 5,382                    
Amortization for the year 344                       
At March 31, 2020 5,726                    
Amortization for the year 344                       
At March 31, 2021 6,070                    

Carrying amount
At March 31, 2020 2,377                    

At March 31, 2021 2,033                    

The Group leases office space, tower space, tower room and vehicles. Leases of tower space, tower room and office space are
generally limited to a lease term of 3 to 5 years. There are three tower space leases with lease terms extended between 15-20
years. Leases of vehicles are for 3 years. There is one land lease with extended lease term for 99 years. Each lease generally
imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Group to sublet the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset
can only be used by the Group. Leases are either non-cancellable or may only be cancelled by incurring a substantial termination
fee. The Group is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying leased assets as security. For leases over office premises, the
Group must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the
lease. 

With the exception of short-term leases and leases of low-value underlying assets, leases are recognized on the statement of
financial position as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
by the Group. 

Telemedia is a party to the Americas Region Caribbean Ring System (ARCOS-1), an optical fiber submarine cable system available
to facilitate the provision of international telecommunication services in the region. The original project cost was approximately
$801.7 million of which BTL funded $8.006 million.
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GENERAL INFORMATION
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8. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 

(ii) Amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income  
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financial position as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use
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Telemedia is a party to the Americas Region Caribbean Ring System (ARCOS-1), an optical fiber submarine cable system available
to facilitate the provision of international telecommunication services in the region. The original project cost was approximately
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12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2021 2020

Trade receivables 52,152 42,097
Less:  Expected credit loss (Note 4 (a)) (20,552)             (16,191)                
Trade receivables - net 31,600              25,906                  
Foreign telephone network administrations receivable 1,371 2,377                    
Other receivables 2,497 7,365                    

35,468 35,648                  

2021 2020

16,191 7,041                    
4,597 9,315                    
(236)                  (165)                     

20,552              16,191                  

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2021 2020

Trade payable 7,457 11,813
Accruals 2,723 5,026
Other payables 3,121 5,411
Customer deposits 5,752 5,031
Interest payable 999 966
License fees 4,371 3,117

24,423 31,364
Less: non- current portion (2,023)               (2,600)                  

22,400 28,764

14. BORROWINGS 2021 2020

-                        12,616

3,472 10,297

30,000 30,000

35,000 35,000

6,238 12,605

Closing loss allowance at March 31

Opening loss allowance at April 1 

The expected credit loss for trade receivables as at March 31 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows:

Amount drawn down on $20 million bank overdraft facility, secured, with interest at 6.25% per
annum, to assist with working capital requirements, the installation of the 4G LTE Advanced
network and the fiber network.

Amount drawn down on $10 million bank overdraft facility, secured, with interest at 6.25% per
annum, to assist with working capital requirements, the installation of the 4G LTE Advanced
network, the fiber network and the MIND Convergent Billing system. 

Balance of $25.8 million, unsecured, payable to Government of Belize (GOB), at its fair value
of $23 million, for full and final settlement of all claims and or obligations arising under the
nationalized British Caribbean Bank Loan Agreement. The balance is to be settled over 44
months, beginning with the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019. There is no explicit interest rate
attached to loan.

Bank loan for $30 million, secured, payable in seven years, with payment of interest only
during the first three years and principal and interest during the remaining four years. $26
million is repayable with interest at 7% per annum and $4 million (USD$2 million) is repayable
with interest at 6.25%. Repayment of principal commences in 2021 and will consist of eight
semi-annual instalments of $3.75 million, exclusive of interest.

Amount drawn down on a 12-year loan of USD$17.5 million (BZD$35 million) from Taiwan
International Cooperation and Development Fund (Taiwan ICDF), secured, with payment of
interest only at 5.5% per annum for the first three years, and principal and interest during the
remaining nine years. Repayment of principal will commence in 2021 and will consist of 18
semi-annual instalments of USD$972 thousand, exclusive of interest.

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 
Increase in loan loss allowance recognized in profit or loss 
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9. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 

II. Intra-group shares 2021 2020

11                     11                         

3                       3                           
14                     14                         

10. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE
2021 2020

Current receivables:
Finance lease - gross receivable 1,036 1,036
Unearned finance income (305)                  (319)                     

731                   717                       

Non-current receivables:
Finance lease - gross receivable 17,508 18,541
Unearned finance income (2,665)               (2,969)                  

14,843       15,572                  

2021 2020

Gross receivables from finance lease 
            No later than one year 1,036                     1,036 
            Later than one year and no later than five years 4,142                     4,142 
            Later than five years 13,365                   14,400 

18,543              19,578                  
Unearned future finance income (2,969)               (3,289)                  
Net investment in finance lease 15,574              16,289                  

The net investment in finance lease may be analyzed as follows:
            No later than one year 731                        717 
            Later than one year and no later than five years 3,074                     3,012 
            Later than five years 11,769                   12,560 

15,574              16,289                  

11. INVENTORIES 2021 2020

Spares, other consumable supplies and goods for resale 10,654 13,935
Less: provision for obsolete inventories (449)                  (699)                     

10,205              13,236                  

699                   930                       
278                   (59)                       

(528)                  (172)                     
449                   699                       

The ARCOS-1 system became operational in March 2002. Its total cost is being amortized over its estimated service life of twenty-
five years, commencing March 2002. 

Stock written off during the year as obsolete
Closing loss allowance at March 31

Opening provision for obsolete stock at April 1 
Increase/ decrease in provision recognized in profit or loss during the year

The provision for obsolete inventory as at March 31 reconcile to the opening provision as follows:

The Group, as lessor, has entered into a finance lease agreement which gives the lessee the exclusive right to use specific strands
of Dark Fiber within specified cable routes. The lease is for a period of 20 years with minimum lease payments of $86 thousand per
month. 

A Group subsidiary, BTL (Overseas) Limited, holds 2,624 shares in Belize
Telemedia Limited, at a cost of $11 thousand.
A Group subsidiary, BTL Telemedia Investments Limited, holds 500 shares
in Belize Telemedia Limited, at a cost of $3 thousand.
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12. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 2021 2020

Trade receivables 52,152 42,097
Less:  Expected credit loss (Note 4 (a)) (20,552)             (16,191)                
Trade receivables - net 31,600              25,906                  
Foreign telephone network administrations receivable 1,371 2,377                    
Other receivables 2,497 7,365                    

35,468 35,648                  

2021 2020

16,191 7,041                    
4,597 9,315                    
(236)                  (165)                     

20,552              16,191                  

13. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2021 2020

Trade payable 7,457 11,813
Accruals 2,723 5,026
Other payables 3,121 5,411
Customer deposits 5,752 5,031
Interest payable 999 966
License fees 4,371 3,117

24,423 31,364
Less: non- current portion (2,023)               (2,600)                  

22,400 28,764

14. BORROWINGS 2021 2020
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3,472 10,297

30,000 30,000

35,000 35,000

6,238 12,605

Closing loss allowance at March 31

Opening loss allowance at April 1 

The expected credit loss for trade receivables as at March 31 reconcile to the opening loss allowance as follows:

Amount drawn down on $20 million bank overdraft facility, secured, with interest at 6.25% per
annum, to assist with working capital requirements, the installation of the 4G LTE Advanced
network and the fiber network.

Amount drawn down on $10 million bank overdraft facility, secured, with interest at 6.25% per
annum, to assist with working capital requirements, the installation of the 4G LTE Advanced
network, the fiber network and the MIND Convergent Billing system. 

Balance of $25.8 million, unsecured, payable to Government of Belize (GOB), at its fair value
of $23 million, for full and final settlement of all claims and or obligations arising under the
nationalized British Caribbean Bank Loan Agreement. The balance is to be settled over 44
months, beginning with the fiscal year ended March 31, 2019. There is no explicit interest rate
attached to loan.

Bank loan for $30 million, secured, payable in seven years, with payment of interest only
during the first three years and principal and interest during the remaining four years. $26
million is repayable with interest at 7% per annum and $4 million (USD$2 million) is repayable
with interest at 6.25%. Repayment of principal commences in 2021 and will consist of eight
semi-annual instalments of $3.75 million, exclusive of interest.

Amount drawn down on a 12-year loan of USD$17.5 million (BZD$35 million) from Taiwan
International Cooperation and Development Fund (Taiwan ICDF), secured, with payment of
interest only at 5.5% per annum for the first three years, and principal and interest during the
remaining nine years. Repayment of principal will commence in 2021 and will consist of 18
semi-annual instalments of USD$972 thousand, exclusive of interest.

Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible 
Increase in loan loss allowance recognized in profit or loss 
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9. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (continued) 

II. Intra-group shares 2021 2020

11                     11                         

3                       3                           
14                     14                         

10. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE
2021 2020

Current receivables:
Finance lease - gross receivable 1,036 1,036
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731                   717                       

Non-current receivables:
Finance lease - gross receivable 17,508 18,541
Unearned finance income (2,665)               (2,969)                  
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Gross receivables from finance lease 
            No later than one year 1,036                     1,036 
            Later than one year and no later than five years 4,142                     4,142 
            Later than five years 13,365                   14,400 

18,543              19,578                  
Unearned future finance income (2,969)               (3,289)                  
Net investment in finance lease 15,574              16,289                  

The net investment in finance lease may be analyzed as follows:
            No later than one year 731                        717 
            Later than one year and no later than five years 3,074                     3,012 
            Later than five years 11,769                   12,560 
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11. INVENTORIES 2021 2020

Spares, other consumable supplies and goods for resale 10,654 13,935
Less: provision for obsolete inventories (449)                  (699)                     

10,205              13,236                  

699                   930                       
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(528)                  (172)                     
449                   699                       

The ARCOS-1 system became operational in March 2002. Its total cost is being amortized over its estimated service life of twenty-
five years, commencing March 2002. 

Stock written off during the year as obsolete
Closing loss allowance at March 31

Opening provision for obsolete stock at April 1 
Increase/ decrease in provision recognized in profit or loss during the year

The provision for obsolete inventory as at March 31 reconcile to the opening provision as follows:

The Group, as lessor, has entered into a finance lease agreement which gives the lessee the exclusive right to use specific strands
of Dark Fiber within specified cable routes. The lease is for a period of 20 years with minimum lease payments of $86 thousand per
month. 

A Group subsidiary, BTL (Overseas) Limited, holds 2,624 shares in Belize
Telemedia Limited, at a cost of $11 thousand.
A Group subsidiary, BTL Telemedia Investments Limited, holds 500 shares
in Belize Telemedia Limited, at a cost of $3 thousand.
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19. CAPITAL RESERVE - NON DISTRIBUTABLE
2021 2020

36,637              36,637                  

20. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2021 2020
Major products/ services lines
Fixed internet & voice                72,551                   76,451 
Mobile                60,105                   68,479 
Roaming & international settlements                  1,803                     7,024 

             134,459                 151,954 
ICT services                  6,658                   17,910 
Revenues from contracts with customers 141,117            169,864                
Other                     168                        206 

             141,285                 170,070 

21. OPERATING COSTS 2021 2020

Facilities and infrastructure 57,548 56,027
General and administrative expenses 36,422 51,749
Network and other fees 25,942 43,888

119,912 151,664

22. TAXATION

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

A general sales tax of 12.5% is levied on goods and services. The General Sales Tax (GST) is a tax on consumer spending that is
collected in stages, at the point of importation of the business purchases and on the sales of the business' good and services when
the goods are sold or service is provided. The payment of tax on purchases and collection of tax on sales are netted monthly and
the net tax paid to the Government of Belize. The tax is consistently excluded from the cost of goods sold of the Group.

In accordance with the Ninth Schedule of the Income and Business Tax Act, as revised, the Group is subject to business tax at
1.75% on gross revenue receipts from internet and data services and non-telecommunication services, 19% on gross revenue
receipts from telecommunication services, and 3% on gross revenue receipts from rent. 

At the close of business, on May 29, 2007, the assets and liabilities of Belize
Telecommunications Limited were vested in Belize Telemedia Limited.
Within the Telemedia financial statements, at that date, the non-distributable
portion of the excess of total assets less total liabilities, less equity shares
issued and fully paid, was placed in a non-distributable capital reserve.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted-
average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding adjusted for its dilutive potential.

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major products and service lines.

Entities within the Group holding Designated Processing Area status attract corporate taxes at a rate of 1.75% of chargeable income
above three million Belize dollars and 3% of the chargeable income below three million Belize dollars and such tax shall be
repayable in the currency of the United States.
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14. BORROWINGS (continued) 2021 2020

3,090 3,500

-                        5,000
               77,800                 109,018 

Less:  current portion              (21,291)                  (34,188)
               56,509                   74,830 

Loans are repayable as follows:

2021-2022 21,291
2022-2023 12,528
2023-2024 12,114
2024-2025 12,157
2025-2026 and thereafter 19,710

77,800

15. OTHER NON- FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2021 2020

Deferred Income 2,890 7,226
Current tax liability 1,968 2,802

4,858 10,028

16. ORDINARY SHARES 2021 2020

Authorized:
100,000            100,000                

Issued and fully paid:

49,552              49,552                  

17. PREFERENCE SHARES
2021 2020

Authorized, issued and fully paid:

48,500              48,500                  

18. SHARE PREMIUM
2021 2020

15,274              15,274                  

In July 2007, a rights issue was offered to shareholders at $3 per share. As
a result of this offer an additional 8,216,725 ordinary shares were issued.
After the transaction was complete, the average share price was $2.859 due
to discounts offered when payments were made in US dollars.

Borrowing costs capitalized during the year amounted to $78 thousand (2020 - $3.3M).

Bank loan for $3.5 million, secured, with interest at 5.75% per annum, repayable in six years,
with payment of interest only during the first year and principal and interest during the
remaining five years. Repayment of principal commences in August 2020 and will consist of
sixty monthly instalments of $67.9 thousand, inclusive of interest.

Re-purchase obligation for $5 million, secured, with interest at 6.5% per annum, repayable in
full on April 13, 2020.

The bank loans are secured by mortgages/charges over various properties held by the Group. The ICDF loan is secured by a
guarantee by the Government of Belize, majority shareholder.

100,000,000 ordinary shares of $1 par value

49,551,652 ordinary shares of $1 par value and 1 Special Share of $1 par
value

48,500,000 4% non-redeemable, cumulative preference shares of $1 par
value
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19. CAPITAL RESERVE - NON DISTRIBUTABLE
2021 2020

36,637              36,637                  

20. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2021 2020
Major products/ services lines
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Mobile                60,105                   68,479 
Roaming & international settlements                  1,803                     7,024 
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ICT services                  6,658                   17,910 
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General and administrative expenses 36,422 51,749
Network and other fees 25,942 43,888

119,912 151,664

22. TAXATION

23. EARNINGS PER SHARE

A general sales tax of 12.5% is levied on goods and services. The General Sales Tax (GST) is a tax on consumer spending that is
collected in stages, at the point of importation of the business purchases and on the sales of the business' good and services when
the goods are sold or service is provided. The payment of tax on purchases and collection of tax on sales are netted monthly and
the net tax paid to the Government of Belize. The tax is consistently excluded from the cost of goods sold of the Group.

In accordance with the Ninth Schedule of the Income and Business Tax Act, as revised, the Group is subject to business tax at
1.75% on gross revenue receipts from internet and data services and non-telecommunication services, 19% on gross revenue
receipts from telecommunication services, and 3% on gross revenue receipts from rent. 

At the close of business, on May 29, 2007, the assets and liabilities of Belize
Telecommunications Limited were vested in Belize Telemedia Limited.
Within the Telemedia financial statements, at that date, the non-distributable
portion of the excess of total assets less total liabilities, less equity shares
issued and fully paid, was placed in a non-distributable capital reserve.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted-
average number of ordinary shares outstanding.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding adjusted for its dilutive potential.

Revenue from contracts with customers is disaggregated by major products and service lines.

Entities within the Group holding Designated Processing Area status attract corporate taxes at a rate of 1.75% of chargeable income
above three million Belize dollars and 3% of the chargeable income below three million Belize dollars and such tax shall be
repayable in the currency of the United States.
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14. BORROWINGS (continued) 2021 2020

3,090 3,500

-                        5,000
               77,800                 109,018 

Less:  current portion              (21,291)                  (34,188)
               56,509                   74,830 

Loans are repayable as follows:

2021-2022 21,291
2022-2023 12,528
2023-2024 12,114
2024-2025 12,157
2025-2026 and thereafter 19,710

77,800

15. OTHER NON- FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2021 2020

Deferred Income 2,890 7,226
Current tax liability 1,968 2,802

4,858 10,028

16. ORDINARY SHARES 2021 2020

Authorized:
100,000            100,000                

Issued and fully paid:

49,552              49,552                  

17. PREFERENCE SHARES
2021 2020

Authorized, issued and fully paid:

48,500              48,500                  

18. SHARE PREMIUM
2021 2020

15,274              15,274                  

In July 2007, a rights issue was offered to shareholders at $3 per share. As
a result of this offer an additional 8,216,725 ordinary shares were issued.
After the transaction was complete, the average share price was $2.859 due
to discounts offered when payments were made in US dollars.

Borrowing costs capitalized during the year amounted to $78 thousand (2020 - $3.3M).

Bank loan for $3.5 million, secured, with interest at 5.75% per annum, repayable in six years,
with payment of interest only during the first year and principal and interest during the
remaining five years. Repayment of principal commences in August 2020 and will consist of
sixty monthly instalments of $67.9 thousand, inclusive of interest.

Re-purchase obligation for $5 million, secured, with interest at 6.5% per annum, repayable in
full on April 13, 2020.

The bank loans are secured by mortgages/charges over various properties held by the Group. The ICDF loan is secured by a
guarantee by the Government of Belize, majority shareholder.
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49,551,652 ordinary shares of $1 par value and 1 Special Share of $1 par
value

48,500,000 4% non-redeemable, cumulative preference shares of $1 par
value
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Sales of goods and services 2021 2020
      
      Sales of services:
           - Belize Social Security Board 1,040 1,663                    
           - Government of Belize 17,475 17,119                  
           - Belize Electricity Limited                  1,574                     1,232 
           - Belize Water Services Limited                     479                        522 

20,568              20,536                  

(b) Purchases of goods and services 
2021 2020

      Purchases of services:
           - Entities controlled by key management personnel 15 160                       
           - Belize Electricity Limited 1,353 1,115                    
           - Belize Water Services Limited 18                     59                         

1,386                1,334                    

(c) Key management compensation

2021 2020

Salaries and other short-term benefits 5,086 5,844                    
Termination benefits/ post-employment benefits 182 195                       

5,268                6,039                    

2021 2020
Receivable from related parties: 
            Government of Belize 2,862 2,364                    
            Belize Social Security Board 103 61                         
            Belize Electricity Limited 18,998 20,159                  
            Belize Water Services Limited 181 241

22,144              22,825                  

The total remuneration paid to key management personnel (includes
executive and non-executive directors): 

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

Goods and services are bought from related parties on normal commercial
terms and conditions.  

The Government of Belize (GOB) owns 49.3% of the ordinary shares and 100% of the preference shares of the Company (Parent).
The Belize Social Security Board owns 34.3% of the ordinary shares of the parent company. GOB is also the majority shareholder of
Belize Electricity Limited and Belize Water Services Limited (government- related entities).

(d) Year-end balances arising from sales and purchases of goods and services:

Good and services are sold to related parties on the same terms and conditions that would be available to third parties except as 
noted below.

Receivables from related parties arise mainly from the sale of telecommunication, data and related services and are due in the
month following the date of sale, except for the sale of dark fiber to BEL under a finance lease agreement. Receivables are
unsecured and bear no interest, except for the sale of dark fiber. 
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23. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

2021 2020

                 8,662                     1,229 
               (1,940)                    (1,940)
                 6,722                       (711)
                      -                             -   
                 6,722                       (711)

               49,552                   49,552 
                      (3)                           (3)
               49,549                   49,549 
                      -                             -   
               49,549                   49,549 

0.14 (0.01)                    

0.14 (0.01)                    

24. DIVIDENDS

2021 2020

                    268                   10,158 

                 1,940                     1,940 

                 2,208                   12,098 

25. COMMITMENTS & CONTINGENCIES

Capital commitments 2021 2020

Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - GUL Sites  -                        461 
Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - MIND Billing System 728  - 
Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - FTTH/ NBP 5,168 7,774
Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - MS365 3,085  - 
Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - other projects 652 2,380

9,633                10,615                  

Capital expenditure planned but not contracted 2,067                1,390                    

The following dividends were declared by the Company:

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 at 0.0054 cents per ordinary share (March 
31, 2019 - 20.50 cents per share)

Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders (basic)
Dilutive effects
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders (diluted)

Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic and diluted)

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (basic and diluted)
Profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders 
Effect of dividends paid on cumulative preference shares

Final dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020 at 4 cents per non-redeemable preference 
share (March 31, 2019 - 4 cents per share)

Outstanding ordinary shares
Effect of intra-group shares (held by subsidiary companies)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)
Dilutive effects
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

Earnings per share (basic)

Earnings per share (diluted)
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Sales of goods and services 2021 2020
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           - Belize Social Security Board 1,040 1,663                    
           - Government of Belize 17,475 17,119                  
           - Belize Electricity Limited                  1,574                     1,232 
           - Belize Water Services Limited                     479                        522 

20,568              20,536                  

(b) Purchases of goods and services 
2021 2020

      Purchases of services:
           - Entities controlled by key management personnel 15 160                       
           - Belize Electricity Limited 1,353 1,115                    
           - Belize Water Services Limited 18                     59                         

1,386                1,334                    

(c) Key management compensation

2021 2020

Salaries and other short-term benefits 5,086 5,844                    
Termination benefits/ post-employment benefits 182 195                       

5,268                6,039                    

2021 2020
Receivable from related parties: 
            Government of Belize 2,862 2,364                    
            Belize Social Security Board 103 61                         
            Belize Electricity Limited 18,998 20,159                  
            Belize Water Services Limited 181 241

22,144              22,825                  

The total remuneration paid to key management personnel (includes
executive and non-executive directors): 

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

Goods and services are bought from related parties on normal commercial
terms and conditions.  

The Government of Belize (GOB) owns 49.3% of the ordinary shares and 100% of the preference shares of the Company (Parent).
The Belize Social Security Board owns 34.3% of the ordinary shares of the parent company. GOB is also the majority shareholder of
Belize Electricity Limited and Belize Water Services Limited (government- related entities).

(d) Year-end balances arising from sales and purchases of goods and services:

Good and services are sold to related parties on the same terms and conditions that would be available to third parties except as 
noted below.

Receivables from related parties arise mainly from the sale of telecommunication, data and related services and are due in the
month following the date of sale, except for the sale of dark fiber to BEL under a finance lease agreement. Receivables are
unsecured and bear no interest, except for the sale of dark fiber. 
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23. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

2021 2020
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Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - GUL Sites  -                        461 
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Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - FTTH/ NBP 5,168 7,774
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Capital expenditure authorized and contracted - other projects 652 2,380
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share (March 31, 2019 - 4 cents per share)

Outstanding ordinary shares
Effect of intra-group shares (held by subsidiary companies)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic)
Dilutive effects
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)

Earnings per share (basic)

Earnings per share (diluted)



BELIZE TELEMEDIA LIMITED Page 34
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MARCH 31, 2021 AND 2020
(IN THOUSANDS OF BELIZE DOLLARS)

28. LITIGATION

29. POST- REPORTING DATE

(c) Claim No. 362 of 2019, Gustavo Mendez v Belize Telemedia Limited - The Claimant, Gustavo Mendez is seeking severance pay
in the sum of $30,150.63 pursuant to section 183 of the Labour Act. The trial of the claim was concluded on February 19, 2020. A
decision is currently pending to be handed down by the Court. Should BTL be unsuccessful in defending the Claim, it is open to
liability of a judgement on or around the sum of $30,150.63, plus interest at 6% per annum, as well as costs.

The Company is subject to certain legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business operations.
Management believes that the amount of liability, if any, from these actions, with the exception of item (a) below, would not have a
material effect on Company’s financial position or results of operations. The following legal matters continue to require keen
attention and consultation with the Company’s attorneys in order to minimize exposure:
(a) Claim No. 514 of 2011, International Telecommunications Limited ("INTELCO") v Belize Telemedia Limited - The Claimant,
INTELCO is seeking reimbursement of the balance of the purchase price for assets allegedly purchased by BTL. INTELCO also
seeks damages in the alternative for alleged breach of contract. An Application filed by INTELCO was heard and a decision was to
be handed down on or around July 2012. The decision remains outstanding. The Claimant has taken no further steps in the claim
since that time. Should BTL be unsuccessful in defending the claim, it is open to liability of US$49.1 million plus interest at 6% per
annum, as well as costs.

(b) Civil Appeals Nos. 18, 19 & 33 of 2016, Curtis Swasey v Belize Telemedia Limited & Belize Telemedia Limited v Curtis Swasey -
The Appeals stem from Supreme Court Claim commenced on November 27, 2014 for damages, costs and interest relating to
breach of contract and breach of confidence. On February 23, 2016 judgement was delivered in favor of Mr. Swasey in the sum of
$25,000 plus costs. Both parties appealed the decision. The appeals were concluded on October 26, 2020 where the Court of
Appeal ruled in favor of BTL. On December 20, 2020 Curtis Swasey filed an Application for Leave to Appeal the Court of Appeals
decision to the Caribbean Court of Justice (CCJ). The said Application was contested by BTL. The parties are awaiting directions
or a possible decision from the Court of Appeal on the Application for Leave. If BTL is unsucccessful in the Application for Leave to
Appeal to the CCJ, then the matter will be heard by the CCJ. 

(d) Claim No. 751 of 2019, Oscar Gongora v Belize Telemedia Limited - The Claimant, Oscar Gongora sought severance pay in the
sum of $34,343.92 pursuant to section 183 of the Labour Act. The trial of the claim concluded on June 16, 2021. A decision was
handed down by the Court on July 30, 2021 which dismissed the claim made by the Claimant and awarded costs (to be agreed or
taxed) to BTL. The Claimant reserves the right to appeal the judgement and will have 21 days from the date the decision is
perfected in an order, to do so. Any possible exposure to BTL would then stem from an appeal, if pursued by the Claimant.

(e) Claim No. 560 of 2020, Erven Marin et al v Belize Telemedia Limited - The 15 Claimants, are claiming severance pay in the total
sum of $409,919.04 pursuant to section 183 of the Labour Act. The case is ongoing and a Further Decisions Hearing is scheduled
for August 2021. Should BTL be unsuccessful in defending the Claim, it is open to liability of a judgement on or around the sum of
$409,919.04, plus interest at 6% per annum, as well as costs.

There were no adjusting or non-adjusting events that occurred between the March 31, 2021 reporting date and the date of
authorization for issuance.
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2021 2020

246                   523                       

Payable to related parties: 
Government of Belize 6,238                12,605                  
Belize Electricity Limited 420                   441                       
Belize Water Services Limited 6                       7                           

6,664                13,053                  

27. CORRECTION OF ERRORS

I. Consolidated statements of financial position

April 1, 2019
As previously 
reported Adjustments As restated

Total assets 409,976            -                                 409,976 

Other non-financial liabilities                19,317                  3,021                22,338 
Others              154,641                       -                154,641 
Total liabilities              173,958                  3,021              176,979 

Retained earnings                92,113                (3,021)                89,092 
Others              149,963                       -                149,963 
Total equity              242,076                (3,021)              239,055 

March 31, 2020
As previously 
reported Adjustments As restated

Total assets 404,134            -                    404,134

Other non-financial liabilities 5,706 4,322 10,028
Others 165,934 -                    165,934
Total liabilities 171,640 4,322 175,962

Retained earnings 82,545 (4,322)               78,223
Others 149,963 -                    149,963
Total equity 232,508 (4,322)               228,186

II. Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

For the year ended March 31, 2020
As previously 
reported Adjustments As restated

Revenue 153,888            (1,934)               151,954
Operating costs (152,297)           633                   (151,664)           
Others 939                   -                    939
Profit 2,530 (1,301)               1,229
Total comprehensive income 2,530 (1,301)               1,229

Advances and loans to key management, interest free with no fixed maturity
date

(e) Year- end balances receivable from key management:

Impact of correction of errors

Impact of correction of errors

During 2021, the Group discovered that deferred income had been erroneously recorded in its financial statements in prior reporting 
periods. The errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for prior periods. The 
following tables summarize the impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:
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28. LITIGATION

29. POST- REPORTING DATE

(c) Claim No. 362 of 2019, Gustavo Mendez v Belize Telemedia Limited - The Claimant, Gustavo Mendez is seeking severance pay
in the sum of $30,150.63 pursuant to section 183 of the Labour Act. The trial of the claim was concluded on February 19, 2020. A
decision is currently pending to be handed down by the Court. Should BTL be unsuccessful in defending the Claim, it is open to
liability of a judgement on or around the sum of $30,150.63, plus interest at 6% per annum, as well as costs.

The Company is subject to certain legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business operations.
Management believes that the amount of liability, if any, from these actions, with the exception of item (a) below, would not have a
material effect on Company’s financial position or results of operations. The following legal matters continue to require keen
attention and consultation with the Company’s attorneys in order to minimize exposure:
(a) Claim No. 514 of 2011, International Telecommunications Limited ("INTELCO") v Belize Telemedia Limited - The Claimant,
INTELCO is seeking reimbursement of the balance of the purchase price for assets allegedly purchased by BTL. INTELCO also
seeks damages in the alternative for alleged breach of contract. An Application filed by INTELCO was heard and a decision was to
be handed down on or around July 2012. The decision remains outstanding. The Claimant has taken no further steps in the claim
since that time. Should BTL be unsuccessful in defending the claim, it is open to liability of US$49.1 million plus interest at 6% per
annum, as well as costs.

(b) Civil Appeals Nos. 18, 19 & 33 of 2016, Curtis Swasey v Belize Telemedia Limited & Belize Telemedia Limited v Curtis Swasey -
The Appeals stem from Supreme Court Claim commenced on November 27, 2014 for damages, costs and interest relating to
breach of contract and breach of confidence. On February 23, 2016 judgement was delivered in favor of Mr. Swasey in the sum of
$25,000 plus costs. Both parties appealed the decision. The appeals were concluded on October 26, 2020 where the Court of
Appeal ruled in favor of BTL. On December 20, 2020 Curtis Swasey filed an Application for Leave to Appeal the Court of Appeals
decision to the Caribbean Court of Justice (CCJ). The said Application was contested by BTL. The parties are awaiting directions
or a possible decision from the Court of Appeal on the Application for Leave. If BTL is unsucccessful in the Application for Leave to
Appeal to the CCJ, then the matter will be heard by the CCJ. 

(d) Claim No. 751 of 2019, Oscar Gongora v Belize Telemedia Limited - The Claimant, Oscar Gongora sought severance pay in the
sum of $34,343.92 pursuant to section 183 of the Labour Act. The trial of the claim concluded on June 16, 2021. A decision was
handed down by the Court on July 30, 2021 which dismissed the claim made by the Claimant and awarded costs (to be agreed or
taxed) to BTL. The Claimant reserves the right to appeal the judgement and will have 21 days from the date the decision is
perfected in an order, to do so. Any possible exposure to BTL would then stem from an appeal, if pursued by the Claimant.

(e) Claim No. 560 of 2020, Erven Marin et al v Belize Telemedia Limited - The 15 Claimants, are claiming severance pay in the total
sum of $409,919.04 pursuant to section 183 of the Labour Act. The case is ongoing and a Further Decisions Hearing is scheduled
for August 2021. Should BTL be unsuccessful in defending the Claim, it is open to liability of a judgement on or around the sum of
$409,919.04, plus interest at 6% per annum, as well as costs.

There were no adjusting or non-adjusting events that occurred between the March 31, 2021 reporting date and the date of
authorization for issuance.
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2021 2020

246                   523                       

Payable to related parties: 
Government of Belize 6,238                12,605                  
Belize Electricity Limited 420                   441                       
Belize Water Services Limited 6                       7                           

6,664                13,053                  

27. CORRECTION OF ERRORS

I. Consolidated statements of financial position

April 1, 2019
As previously 
reported Adjustments As restated

Total assets 409,976            -                                 409,976 

Other non-financial liabilities                19,317                  3,021                22,338 
Others              154,641                       -                154,641 
Total liabilities              173,958                  3,021              176,979 

Retained earnings                92,113                (3,021)                89,092 
Others              149,963                       -                149,963 
Total equity              242,076                (3,021)              239,055 

March 31, 2020
As previously 
reported Adjustments As restated

Total assets 404,134            -                    404,134

Other non-financial liabilities 5,706 4,322 10,028
Others 165,934 -                    165,934
Total liabilities 171,640 4,322 175,962

Retained earnings 82,545 (4,322)               78,223
Others 149,963 -                    149,963
Total equity 232,508 (4,322)               228,186

II. Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

For the year ended March 31, 2020
As previously 
reported Adjustments As restated

Revenue 153,888            (1,934)               151,954
Operating costs (152,297)           633                   (151,664)           
Others 939                   -                    939
Profit 2,530 (1,301)               1,229
Total comprehensive income 2,530 (1,301)               1,229

Advances and loans to key management, interest free with no fixed maturity
date

(e) Year- end balances receivable from key management:

Impact of correction of errors

Impact of correction of errors

During 2021, the Group discovered that deferred income had been erroneously recorded in its financial statements in prior reporting 
periods. The errors have been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for prior periods. The 
following tables summarize the impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:








